
 

Newnan City Council Meeting  
February 12, 2019 – 2:30 P.M. 

A G E N D A 
 
CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Keith Brady    

 
INVOCATION 
 
READING OF MINUTES 
 
 

I Minutes from Regular Council Meeting on January 22, 2019 .................................................. Tab A 
 
 
REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMISSION 

 
 
I 1 Appointment – Tree Commission – 3 Year Term 

 
 

II 1 Appointment – CAFI Board of Trustees 
 
 
III Resignation – Keep Newnan Beautiful / Carole Ann Fields ..................................................... Tab B 
 
 
IV Resignation – Keep Newnan Beautiful / Christina Bowerman ................................................. Tab C 
    
 

REPORTS ON OPERATIONS BY CITY MANAGER 
 
 

REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 

I Public Hearing – Application for Alcohol Beverage License – Retail On Premise 
(Pouring) Sales, Distilled Spirits, Malt Beverages and Wine – Chipotle Mexican 
Grill of Colorado, LLC DBA Chipotle Mexican Grill – 1200 Bullsboro Drive – 
Reason:  New Business ........................................................................................................... Tab D 

 
 
II Davenport & Company Investment Policy Presentation and updated City 

Investment Management Program ........................................................................................... Tab E 
 
 
III Consideration of Resolution Approving and Adopting the Coweta County Hazard 

Mitigation Plan Update:  2018 - 2023 ....................................................................................... Tab F 
 

 
IV Consider revised 2019 Newnan Centre Budget which includes the undertaking of 

an expansion project ................................................................................................................ Tab G 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NEWNAN CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA – FEBRUARY 12, 2019 @ 2:30 P.M. .................... Page 2 
 
V Information Only – Request by Dennis Drewyer on behalf of Ascension QOF 

Partners, LLC to rezone 24.47+ acres located on McIntosh Parkway from RU-7 
(Urban Residential Single-Family Dwelling District-High Density) to MXD (Mixed 
Use District) – Planning Commission ....................................................................................... Tab H 

 
 
VI Information Only – Request by Walter Drake to rezone .32+ acres located at 9 

Ellis Street/65 Fair Street from CHV (Heavy Commercial District) to RU-I (Urban 
Residential Dwelling District-Historical and Infill) – Planning Commission ............................... Tab I 

 
 
VII Request by Dennis Drewyer on behalf of Cathryn and William Sullivan to annex 

30.78+ acres located at 950 North Highway 29 into the Newnan City Limits – 
Desire to pursue requires vote to refer to Planning Commission .............................................. Tab J 

 
 
VIII The Housing Authority of Newnan working with the Newnan Urban 

Redevelopment Agency is proposing possible use of City-owned properties 
located at 70 and 79 Savannah Street as potential NSP sites for homes ............................... Tab K 

 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
 
I Status Reports – 10 Burch Avenue, 286 West Washington Street, 121 Pinson 

Street and 180 West Washington Street .................................................................................. Tab L 
 

 
VISITORS, PETITIONS, COMMUNICATIONS & COMPLAINTS 
 
 

I Request from Joshua and Kara Cole that City authorize the transfer of deed of 
the portion of the alley which serves as driveway to 10 Buchanan Street, Newnan ............... Tab M 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – LEGAL, PERSONNEL AND REAL ESTATE 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 















lwinn
Text Box
BOARDS & COMMISSIONS - RESIGNATION FROM KEEP NEWNAN BEAUTIFUL



BOARDS & COMMISSIONS – RESIGNATION FROM KEEP NEWNAN BEAUTIFUL 
 
From: Executive Director  
Sent: Tuesday, January 22, 2019 1:32 PM 
To: Page Beckwith 
Subject: RE: Resignation email  

 
Good afternoon, Page. I have enjoyed my time volunteering with the Keep Newnan Beautiful 
Commission but will need to resign effective immediately. I have relocated to Florida to take care of an 
ailing parent and will not be returning to Newnan. Should you need anything further, please let me 
know. Otherwise, I wish you and the KNB Commission well. Newnan-Coweta Habitat for Humanity will 
continue to partner with KNB and I will be sure to inform the new executive director of local projects 
once a replacement has been found.  
 
Thank you.  
 

Cristina I. Bowerman, CAE, MNM 
Executive Director 
Newnan-Coweta Habitat for Humanity, Inc. 
PO Box 73619, Newnan, GA  30271 
Office: (770) 252-9049, ext. 206 
Cell: (470) 241-8192 
executivedirector@nchfh.org 
www.nchfh.org 

 
 

mailto:executivedirector@nchfh.org
http://www.nchfh.org/






Member NYSE|FINRA|SIPC

Investment Policy

City of Newnan, Georgia

February 12, 2019



City of Newnan, Georgia February 12, 2019 1

About Davenport & Company LLC

Major Business ConcentrationsMajor Business ConcentrationsMajor Business ConcentrationsMajor Business Concentrations

Asset Management

Equity Research

Investment Consulting

Public Finance

Retail Brokerage

Founded in 1863, Davenport & Founded in 1863, Davenport & Founded in 1863, Davenport & Founded in 1863, Davenport & 

Company LLC celebrated its 155Company LLC celebrated its 155Company LLC celebrated its 155Company LLC celebrated its 155thththth

consecutive year in business in 2018.consecutive year in business in 2018.consecutive year in business in 2018.consecutive year in business in 2018.

Davenport is a wholly employee Davenport is a wholly employee Davenport is a wholly employee Davenport is a wholly employee 

owned firm.owned firm.owned firm.owned firm.

Public Finance Office

Roanoke

Lynchburg
Farmville

Danville

Charlottesville

Fredericksburg

Franklin

Williamsburg

RichmondRichmondRichmondRichmond

Norfolk

White Stone

Raleigh

Greensboro

Virginia 

Beach

Brokerage Office

Sanford

CharlotteCharlotteCharlotteCharlotte

LeesburgLeesburgLeesburgLeesburg

TowsonTowsonTowsonTowson

AtlantaAtlantaAtlantaAtlanta

Suffolk

Hilton HeadHilton HeadHilton HeadHilton Head

CharlestonCharlestonCharlestonCharleston



City of Newnan, Georgia February 12, 2019 2

Davenport’s Investment Advisory Approach

ServiceServiceServiceService PurposePurposePurposePurpose SpecificSpecificSpecificSpecific Tasks as AppropriateTasks as AppropriateTasks as AppropriateTasks as Appropriate

Investment Policies
Provides Guidelines for Decision 

Making

� Development of Policy Guidelines

� Permitted Investments

� Investment Suitability

� Establish System of Review and Control

� Streamlined Investment Procedures

Investment Strategy
Maximize Yield

Minimize Risk

� Asset Allocation Strategies

� Matching Assets and Liability

� Diversification Strategies

� Monitor Dealer Concentration

� Performance Benchmarks

Investment Approach Enhanced Decision Making

� Match Short-term Assets with Liabilities

� Monitor Actual Cash Flow vs. Forecasts

� Track Receipts and Disbursements 

� Maximize Returns without additional risk

Investment of Proceeds
Improve Performance of 

Proceeds

� Competitive bidding of Investments

� Flexible Repurchase Agreements

� Guaranteed Investment Contracts

� Arbitrage Rebate Analysis



� Davenport, in conjunction with City Staff, developed the proposed Investment Policy for the City Council’s 

consideration this evening.

� Through the adoption of the Investment Policy, it establishes the operating framework within the Investment 

Management Program. In addition it dictates how the City’s Investment Advisor/ Staff/ Council will act in a 

prudent manner concerning the City’s investments.

– Establishes the scope and key objectives of the Investment Management Program:

1) Safety;

2) Liquidity; and, 

3) Return on Investment (i.e. Yield). 

– Establishes certain protections to minimize risk:

1) Minimum Collateralization requirements;

2) Safekeeping / Custody requirements;

3) Diversification (interest rate, concentration, credit) requirements.

City of Newnan, Georgia February 12, 2019 3

Investment Policy Overview



� In addition to the previous page, the Investment Policy accomplishes the following:

– Establishes permitted investments as defined under Georgia Code

– Provides additional requirements (i.e. minimum rating)

– Establishes the Qualified Bidders List (those who are able to provide securities)

– Establishes Investment Decisions and Procedures;

– Establishes Internal Controls

– Establishes Minimum Reporting Requirements

– At a minimum, on a quarterly basis, the City Council will receive a report that highlights the key 

characteristics of the existing portfolio. 

City of Newnan, Georgia February 12, 2019 4

Investment Policy Overview (Continued) 



City of Newnan, Georgia February 12, 2019 5

Next Steps

TimelineTimelineTimelineTimeline Deliverable / ActionDeliverable / ActionDeliverable / ActionDeliverable / Action

Completed
� Davenport Reviewed the City’s Historic Operations, Account Balances, Capital 

Plan, and other necessary information

In Progress � Development of Cash Flow Forecast Model

February 12, 2019

(Today)

City CouncilCity CouncilCity CouncilCity Council MeetingMeetingMeetingMeeting

� Davenport to present summary of Investment Policy 

� City Council to formally adopt Investment Policy

Balance of February

� Davenport to distribute request to potential qualified bidders regarding their 

participation in the City’s investment management program

� Davenport to distribute Custodian Request for Proposals

February 26, 2019

City Council MeetingCity Council MeetingCity Council MeetingCity Council Meeting

� Davenport to present Custodian RFP Results and Proposed Qualified Bidder List

� City Council to approve Custodian & Qualified Bidder List

Late February / Early 

March

� Finalize Cash Flow Forecast

� Review Investment Procedures

Early / Mid March � Formalize Initial Investment 

Late March / Early April � Commence Investment Management Program



Richmond — Headquarters

One James Center

901 East Cary Street,

Suite 1100,

Richmond, Virginia 23219 

Telephone:

(804) 780-2000

Toll-Free:

(800) 846-6666

E-Mail:

info@investdavenport.com

6

Courtney Rogers

Senior Vice President

804-697-2902

crogers@investdavenport.com

February 12, 2019

Contact Information

Ricardo Cornejo

First Vice President

404-865-4040

rcornejo@investdavenport.com

Atlanta — Branch Office  

3350 Riverwood Parkway

Suite 1900,

Atlanta, Georgia 30339

Doug Gebhardt

Vice President

404-825-9467

dgebhardt@investdavenport.com

City of Newnan, Georgia



The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) has clarified that a broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer engaging in municipal advisory activities outside the scope of underwriting

a particular issuance of municipal securities should be subject to municipal advisor registration. Davenport & Company LLC (“Davenport”) has registered as a municipal advisor with the SEC. As a

registered municipal advisor Davenport may provide advice to a municipal entity or obligated person. An obligated person is an entity other than a municipal entity, such as a not for profit

corporation, that has commenced an application or negotiation with an entity to issue municipal securities on its behalf and for which it will provide support. If and when an issuer engages

Davenport to provide financial advisory or consultant services with respect to the issuance of municipal securities, Davenport is obligated to evidence such a financial advisory relationship with a

written agreement.

When acting as a registered municipal advisor Davenport is a fiduciary required by federal law to act in the best interest of a municipal entity without regard to its own financial or other interests.

Davenport is not a fiduciary when it acts as a registered investment advisor, when advising an obligated person, or when acting as an underwriter, though it is required to deal fairly with such

persons,

This material was prepared by public finance, or other non-research personnel of Davenport. This material was not produced by a research analyst, although it may refer to a Davenport research

analyst or research report. Unless otherwise indicated, these views (if any) are the author’s and may differ from those of the Davenport fixed income or research department or others in the firm.

Davenport may perform or seek to perform financial advisory services for the issuers of the securities and instruments mentioned herein.

This material has been prepared for information purposes only and is not a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security/instrument or to participate in any trading strategy. Any such offer

would be made only after a prospective participant had completed its own independent investigation of the securities, instruments or transactions and received all information it required to make its

own investment decision, including, where applicable, a review of any offering circular or memorandum describing such security or instrument. That information would contain material information

not contained herein and to which prospective participants are referred. This material is based on public information as of the specified date, and may be stale thereafter. We have no obligation to

tell you when information herein may change. We make no representation or warranty with respect to the completeness of this material. Davenport has no obligation to continue to publish

information on the securities/instruments mentioned herein. Recipients are required to comply with any legal or contractual restrictions on their purchase, holding, sale, exercise of rights or

performance of obligations under any securities/instruments transaction.

The securities/instruments discussed in this material may not be suitable for all investors or issuers. Recipients should seek independent financial advice prior to making any investment decision

based on this material. This material does not provide individually tailored investment advice or offer tax, regulatory, accounting or legal advice. Prior to entering into any proposed transaction,

recipients should determine, in consultation with their own investment, legal, tax, regulatory and accounting advisors, the economic risks and merits, as well as the legal, tax, regulatory and

accounting characteristics and consequences, of the transaction. You should consider this material as only a single factor in making an investment decision.

The value of and income from investments and the cost of borrowing may vary because of changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, default rates, prepayment rates, securities/instruments

prices, market indexes, operational or financial conditions or companies or other factors. There may be time limitations on the exercise of options or other rights in securities/instruments

transactions. Past performance is not necessarily a guide to future performance and estimates of future performance are based on assumptions that may not be realized. Actual events may differ

from those assumed and changes to any assumptions may have a material impact on any projections or estimates. Other events not taken into account may occur and may significantly affect the

projections or estimates. Certain assumptions may have been made for modeling purposes or to simplify the presentation and/or calculation of any projections or estimates, and Davenport does

not represent that any such assumptions will reflect actual future events. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that estimated returns or projections will be realized or that actual returns or

performance results will not materially differ from those estimated herein. This material may not be sold or redistributed without the prior written consent of Davenport.

Version 01/13/2014 AH/DJG/RC/CR

February 12, 2019 7

Disclaimer

City of Newnan, Georgia



1 

 

INVESTMENT POLICY 

Adopted ___________, 2019 

 

Policy  

It is the policy of the City of Newnan, Georgia (the “City”) to invest public funds in a manner, which will 
provide the highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow 
demands of the City and conforming to all state and local statutes governing the investment of public 
funds. Cash may, at the discretion of the City Manager, Finance Director or their designee, be invested 
separately by fund or be commingled into a common investment portfolio and earnings from such portfolio 
should be distributed at least quarterly.  

 

Consultant 

The City Manager, Finance City or their designee have the ability to engage a consultant to facilitate the 

investment policy and assist in the City’s Investment Management Program. 

 

Scope  

This investment policy supersedes any previous investment policy and applies to all financial assets of 
the City, except the City of Newnan Retirement Plan, Police Pension, and Firemen's Pension Fund, which 
are covered in separate investment policies. The funds to be covered by this policy include:  

 

(1) General fund,  

(2) Special revenue funds, 

(3) Capital projects funds, 

(4) Enterprise funds, and,  

(5) Other government funds.  

 

Prudence  

Investments shall be made with the judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which 
persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for 
speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable 
income to be derived.  

The standard of prudence to be used by the City Manager, Finance Director or their designee shall be the 
"prudent person" and/or "prudent investor" standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an 
overall portfolio. The City Manager, Finance Director or their designee acting in accordance with written 
procedures and the investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal 
responsibility for an individual security's credit risk change or market price changes, provided deviations 
from expectations are reported to the elected body in a timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to 
control adverse developments. 

 



2 

 

  

Primary Objectives  

The primary objectives, in priority order, of the City's investment activities shall be as follows:  

 

(1)  Safety: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. Investments 
of the City shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital 
in the overall portfolio. To attain this objective, diversification is required in order that 
potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the income generated from the 
remainder of the portfolio.  

 

(2)  Liquidity: The City's investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the City to 
meet all operating requirements, which might be reasonably anticipated.  

 

(3)  Return on investment: The City's investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of 
attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into 
account the City's investment risk constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the 
portfolio.  

 

Delegation of Authority  

Management responsibility for the investment program is hereby delegated to the City Manager, Finance 
Director or their designee, who shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall establish a 
system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate officials, and their procedures.  

The City Manager, Finance Director or their designee shall establish written investment policy procedures 
for the operation of the investment program consistent with this policy. The procedure should include 
reference to repurchase agreements, wire transfer agreements, banking service contracts and 
collateral/depository agreements. Such procedures shall include explicit delegation of authority to persons 
responsible for investment transactions. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as 
provided under the terms of this policy and the procedures established by the City Manager, Finance 
Director or their designee.  

 

Ethics and Conflicts of Interest 

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity 
that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or which could impair their ability to 
make impartial investment decisions. Officers and employees shall disclose to the City Manager, Finance 
Director or their designee any material financial interests in financial institutions that conduct business 
within their jurisdiction, and they shall further disclose any large personal financial/investment positions 
that could be related to the performance of the City of Newnan.  

 

 

 



3 

 

Qualified Financial Institutions and Broker/Dealers (Bidders) 

Only those financial institutions and broker/dealers formally approved by the City Council are eligible to 
provide investments services and become designated Qualified Bidders on the City’s investments. The 
policy is not intended to limit those participating in the City’s investment but intended to screen out 
institutions that lack economic viability or those whose past practices suggest that the safety of public 
capital would be impaired if transactions were directed to or through such entities. 

 

- All financial institutions (banks and broker/dealers) who desire to become qualified for 
investment transactions must supply the following as applicable:- Audited financial 
statements demonstrating compliance with state and federal capital adequacy guidelines  

- Proof of FINRA (Financial Industry Regulatory Authority) registration including active status, 
no regulator suspensions and at least five years of operations (broker/dealers) 

- Proof of SEC (Securities and Exchange Commission) registration and compliance with 
SEC Rule 15C3-1 Uniform Net Capital Rule regarding minimum capital requirements 
(broker/dealers) 

- Proof of state registration (broker/dealers) 

- Signed Certificate of Acknowledgement certifying that the appropriate personnel have read, 
understood and agree to comply with this investment policy (broker/dealers and banks) 

- Signed Suitability of Collateral Agreement certifying that the appropriate personnel 
acknowledge, understand and agree to abide by Georgia law regarding collateralization 
requirements of public funds deposits (banks) 

 

The City will maintain a list of not more than ten (10) qualified institutions from which investments may be 
purchased. Financial institutions (banks) and broker/dealers interested in becoming approved institutions 
to hold City investments must submit a letter to the City Manager, Finance Director or their designee 
indicating the institution’s interest and outlining its qualifications, including addressing the applicable 
requirements above. In addition, the supervising officer at each bank or securities broker/dealer must 
review this Investment Policy and sign the Certificate of Acknowledgement, which certifies that the officer 
has reviewed the investment policies and objectives, and agrees to disclose potential conflicts or risks to 
public funds that might arise out of business transactions between the bank or securities broker/dealer 
and the City. All financial institutions shall agree to undertake reasonable efforts to preclude imprudent 
transactions involving the City’s funds.  

The City Council will approve or refuse to approve an institution based on its current financial statements, 
regulatory agency status, bank rating based on current published ratings from FDIC referenced rating 
institutions, and/or community involvement as determined by the City Council. It is at the discretion of the 
City Manager, Finance Director or their designee, and the City Council to periodically review the list of 
approved institutions and remove those institutions no longer meeting the above-referenced criteria. From 
time to time, the City Manager, Finance Director or their designee may recommend that nonparticipating 
institutions be removed from the list to ensure that the City has a proactive group of participants. The 
decision to remove an institution at the recommendation of the City Manager, Finance Director or their 
designee shall rest solely with the City Council. 

 

 

 

 



4 

 

 

Authorized and Suitable Investments 

Investments (other than bond proceeds) shall be made in instruments permitted by the State of Georgia 
for local governments (O.C.G.A. 36-83-4).  Such instruments include:   

 
- Obligations issued by the U.S. government,  
- Obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the U.S. government or by a government agency 

of the United States,  
- Obligations of any corporation of the U.S. government,  
- Prime bankers’ acceptances,  
- Repurchase agreements,  
- Obligations of other political subdivisions of the state, and 
- The Georgia local government investment pool (i.e., Georgia Fund I). 
 

In accordance with O.C.G.A. 36-82-7, investments made with unexpended bond proceeds shall be limited 
to:   

 
- Bonds or obligations of the governmental entities and/or political subdivisions of the state,  
- Bonds or obligations of the U.S. government which are fully guaranteed,  
- Obligations of agencies of the U.S. government, bonds or other obligations of public 

housing agencies or municipal corporations in the United States,  
- Certificates of deposit of national or state banks insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 

Corporation, 
- Certificates of deposit of Federal Saving and Loan Associations; and 
- The Georgia local government investment pool (Georgia Fund I). 

 
 

Using the State of Georgia Local Government Investment Pools  
 

The City will utilize the State of Georgia local government investment pool (e.g., Georgia Fund I) anytime 
this investment tool is deemed to be in the best interest of the City.  Criteria used to determine the use of 
this investment pool will be the same as any other investment purchase (O.C.G.A 36-83-2).  

 
 

Collateralization  

Collateralization will be on repurchase agreements. In order to anticipate market changes and provide a 
level of security for all funds, the collateralized level will be 110 percent of market value of principal and 
accrued interest.  

(1)  The City chooses to limit collateral to the obligations of the United States Government and 
its agencies.  

(2)  Collateral will always be held by an independent third party with whom the City has a 
current custodial agreement. A clearly marked evidence of ownership (safekeeping receipt) 
must be supplied to the City and retained.  

(3)  The right of collateral substitution is granted.  

 

 

 



5 

 

Safekeeping and Custody  

A)  To protect against potential fraud, embezzlement or improprieties in safekeeping, the 
investment securities of the City shall be secured through third-party custody and 
safekeeping procedures. A Safekeeping Agreement will be executed and monthly reporting 
is required. 

B)  Exempt from the third-party safekeeping procedures are securities which collateralize 
Repurchase Agreements of 7 days duration or less. These securities shall be kept at the 
Federal Reserve Bank, pledged to the City and the City shall have the right to approve any 
substitutions of collateral should it prove necessary. 

C)  The purchase of investment securities shall be “DVP” or delivery versus payment. This 
practice ensures that both sides of the transaction (delivery of the security and transfer of 
the money) occur simultaneously through the safekeeping institution. 

D) The City Manager, Finance Director or their designee will procure an independent third 
party safekeeping agent or custodian pursuant to a competitive process with final approval 
by City Council. 

 

Diversification  

It is the policy of the City to diversify its investment portfolio to mitigate risk of loss. Assets shall be 
diversified to eliminate the risk of loss resulting from over concentration of assets in a specific maturity, 
from a specific issuer or of a specific class of securities. Diversification strategy shall be reviewed and 
revised periodically by the City Manager, Finance Director or their designee and the City Council.  

The following general diversification strategies and constraints shall apply to avoid: 

A) Interest Rate Risk – Portfolio maturities shall be staggered to avoid undue concentration of 
assets in a specific maturity sector unless otherwise dictated by needs of the City. 
Maturities selected shall provide for stability of income and reasonable liquidity in order to 
fund anticipated cash flow needs such as those for regular operating expenditures, Capital 
Improvement Plan requirements, debt service payments, etc. Structuring the investment 
portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements avoids the need to sell 
securities on the open market prior to maturity when there is a risk that current market rates 
could be higher than the rate on the security owned by the City resulting in a loss on the 
sale. 

B) Concentration Risk - No more than 20% of the entire invested portfolio may be invested in 
securities of any one issuer. Investments explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and 
investments in government investment pools such as Georgia Fund 1 are excluded from 
this requirement. 

C) Credit Risk - All financial institutions (banks) and broker/dealers will be pre-qualified and 
subject to ongoing monitoring to ensure compliance with applicable regulations and 
requirements. Diversification of the investment portfolio to avoid concentration risk will also 
alleviate some of the credit risk by limiting deposits with any one issuer. 

 

 

 



6 

 

 

Liquidity 

The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to enable the City to meet all operating 
requirements that might be reasonably anticipated.  This is accomplished by structuring the portfolio so 
that securities mature concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated demands (static liquidity).  
Furthermore, since all possible cash demands cannot be anticipated, the portfolio should consist largely 
of securities with active secondary or resale markets (dynamic liquidity).  A portion of the portfolio also 
may be placed in money market mutual funds or the State of Georgia Local Government Investment Pool 
which offer same-day liquidity for short-term funds. 

 

Investment Maturities 

Investments for all operating funds shall be made in maturities consistent with the estimated cash flow of 
the City.  Both short-term (one year or less) and long-term (over one year) will be utilized in order to 
maximize investment return. 

 

Investment Decisions and Procedures 

A) Competitive Bidding shall be the primary method of soliciting investment opportunities for 
the City to ensure the best rate of return available. Only those banks and broker/dealers on 
the City’s approved Qualified Bidder list are eligible to participate in bids for City’s 
investments. It is at the discretion of the Finance Director to solicit bids from both banks 
and broker/dealers, or from just banks or just broker/dealers depending on if there is an 
obvious and significant differential between rates available in the bond market and those 
available at depository institutions which would eliminate non-competitive bids. 

B) Local Government Investment Pool – investment deposits to the LGIP can be made at the 
discretion of the Investment Advisor and without competitive bidding. The City recognizes 
that the LGIP is a viable investment option with a competitive rate of return and provides 
liquidity to the portfolio for operating, capital improvement and other cash flow requirements 
of the City. 

C) Short-term/Small Block Investments - Investment activities involving short investment 
periods (less than 60 days) or small blocks of funds ($500,000 or less) can be placed by 
the City Manager, Finance Director or their designee with the bank which holds the City’s 
primary operating accounts without bids. The City recognizes the inherent cost of executing 
a bidding process and the relatively low return from short period investments of smaller 
sums of money. 

D) Unsolicited Offerings - The City Manager, Finance Director or their designee is permitted to 
periodically acquire investments resulting from unsolicited offerings from any Qualified 
Bidder. 

a. Banks - Unsolicited investment opportunities from Qualified Banks shall be 
considered based on the results of the most recent competitive bid and the City 
Manager, Finance Director or their designee’s working knowledge of the current 
market conditions. 

b. Broker/Dealers - Unsolicited investment opportunities from Qualified 
Broker/Dealers shall be considered based on the results of the most recent 
competitive bid and the City Manager, Finance Director or their designee’s 
working knowledge of current market conditions. The City recognizes that the 



7 

 

Broker/Dealer may acquire an individual security on the secondary market that 
suits the current maturity and yield requirements of the City at a price that is 
competitive. This security would likely not be available from another source and 
would not be available for any length of time to hold a competitive bid. 

E) New Issues – The new issue of government agency securities are sold at par and therefore 
a competitive bid process would not be warranted. The City Manager, Finance Director or 
their designee shall decide on the purchase of a new issue government agency security 
based on the results of the most recent competitive bid, and the maturity and diversification 
requirements of the City’s portfolio. 

F) Swap Trades – A Swap Trade is the sale of one investment currently in the City’s portfolio 
and the subsequent purchase of another investment. The swap trade would be conducted 
to increase the yield on the investment, adjust the maturity of the investment per the cash 
requirements of the City, and/or improve the quality of the investment by selling a security 
with a perceived higher risk and buying a security with a lower risk (i.e. trading Agencies for 
Treasuries). On a regular basis, an updated City investment portfolio will be provided to all 
Qualified Bidders. If a swap opportunity is deemed by the City Manager, Finance Director 
or their designee to be beneficial to the City’s portfolio, and, if the rate quoted on the swap 
is determined to be in close proximity to the market (within 4/32 of a point) then the swap 
trade shall be completed. In certain circumstances, the City may incur a loss for accounting 
purposes by making the swap which will be considered acceptable only if it can be 
recovered within 90% of the time from date of sale to date of maturity of the security traded 
away in the swap. 

G) Documentation – All investment decisions and transactions shall be fully documented by 
the City Manager, Finance Director or their designee. Documentation shall include written 
description of the investment purchased including yield and term, as well as competitive bid 
results. Documentation of unsolicited offering, new issue, or swap trade should also be 
included, if applicable. A description of current market conditions which impacted the 
decision should also be documented, if applicable. Appropriate documentation is shared 
and reviewed with the Bank and or Broker/Dealer from whom the investment purchase was 
made to ensure confirmation and accuracy of the transaction. 

H) Separation of Functions – The wire transfer to complete the City Manager, Finance Director 
or their designee’s settlement of a term deposit with a bank will be completed by the 
Finance Director or their designee. The City Manager, Finance Director or their designee 
will review investment purchase documentation and complete the wire per the wiring 
instructions provided by the receiving bank. Government agency investment security trades 
are executed via DVP through third party safekeeping so no wire transfers are required for 
security trades. Money market and other demand accounts shall have the same authorized 
signers as the City’s operating bank account. 

 

Internal control 

The City Manager, Finance Director or their designee is responsible for establishing and maintaining an 
internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or 
misuse. The internal control structure shall be designed to provide reasonable assurance that these 
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: 

- The cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and;  
- The valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.  



8 

 

Accordingly, the City Manager, Finance Director or their designee shall establish a process for an annual 
independent review by an external auditor to assure compliance with policies and procedures. This 
process should be part of the external audit.   

Performance Standards 

The investment portfolio will be designed to obtain a market average rate of return during budgetary and 
economic cycles, taking into account the city's investment risk constraints and cash flow needs.  

 

(1)  Investment strategy: The City's investment strategy is active. As a result, securities are 
purchased and sold as it best meets the needs of the City as determined by the Finance 
Director or their designee. The Finance Director or their designee will be authorized to 
trade before maturity if it is in the best interest of the City to do so.  

 

(2)  Market yield (Benchmark): Given this strategy, the basis used by the Finance Director or 
designee to determine whether market yields are being achieved shall be the Average U.S. 
Treasury Note Rate which corresponds to the average life of the investments in the 
portfolio.  

 

Reporting 

The City Manager, Finance Director or their designee shall provide the Mayor and City Council, at a 
minimum, quarterly reports which provide a clear picture of the status of the current investment portfolio. 
The management report should include comments on the fixed income markets and economic conditions, 
discussions regarding restrictions on percentage of investment by categories, possible changes in the 
portfolio structure going forward and thoughts on investment strategies. Schedules in the quarterly report 
should include the following:  

 

A listing of individual securities held at the end of the reporting period by authorized investment 
category.  

Average life and final maturity of all investments listed.  

Coupon, discount or earnings rate.  

Par value, amortized book value and market value.  

Percentage of the portfolio represented by each investment category.  

 

Investment policy adoption 

The City's investment policy shall be adopted by City Council. The City Manager, Finance Director or their 
designee shall review the policy on an annual basis and the City Council must approve any modifications 
made thereto.  

 

 



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: February 12, 2019 
 
Agenda Item:  Consideration of Resolution Approving and Adopting of the 
Coweta County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update: 2018-2023 
 
Prepared and Present by:   Hasco Craver, Assistant City Manager 

 
 

Purpose: Newnan City Council may consider a Resolution Approving and Adopting of the Coweta 
County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update: 2018-2023 
 
Background:   
 
The City of Newnan, in August 2015, unanimously approved the participation with Coweta 
County to update the county’s multi-jurisdictional hazard mitigation plan.   
 
The plan update, which began in the fall of 2016, included numerous activities such as the 
identification and prioritization of hazards, review and analysis of mitigation strategies, update of 
critical facilities, public meetings and presentation to jurisdictions for adoption.   
 
The purpose of the Coweta County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update: 2018-2023 is to protect life, 
promote safety and preserve property by reducing the potential for future damages and economic 
losses that result from natural and technological hazards. 
 
Significant modifications and/or updates to the plan include the addition of tropical cyclone and 
drought to natural hazards, separation of tornado and severe thunderstorms from wind natural 
hazards, and the addition of dam failure, transportation incident and terrorism to technological 
hazards. 
 
The hazard mitigation plan update participant list included members of the City of Newnan’s 
police department, fire department, public works department and information technology 
department. 
 
Funding: N/A 
 
Recommendation: Newnan City Council may adopt Resolution Approving and Adopting of the 
Coweta County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update: 2018-2023 
 
Attachments:  
 

1. Resolution Approving and Adopting of the Coweta County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update: 
2018-2023 

        
Previous Discussions with Council: Newnan City Council considered and approved 
participating in the plan update in August 2015. 















City of Newnan, Georgia – Mayor and Council 
 
Date:  February 12, 2019 
 
 
Agenda Item: Rezoning Request RZ2019-02:  Ascension QOF Partners, 
LLP for 24.436 +/- acres located on McIntosh Parkway (Tax Parcels # 
N57-003A and N57-003B 

                      
 Prepared and Presented by:  Dean Smith, Planner 
 

Purpose:   To inform Council that RZ2019-022 is before the Planning Commission for consideration 
and a recommendation on the requested zoning change. 
 
Background:  Dennis Drewyer, on behalf of Ascension QOF Partners, LLP, has submitted an 
application for rezoning of 24.47+/- acres located on McIntosh Parkway.  The request is to rezone the 
properties from RU-7 (Urban Residential Single-Family Dwelling District-High Density) to MXD (Mixed 
Use District) for the purpose of developing 125 residential units, consisting of 25 attached villas and 
105 cottages.  On the frontage of McIntosh Parkway, an area will be reserved for development of 
uses permitted in OI-1, OI-2, CCS and CGN zoning designations. 

 

Current Zoning 

 

Tax Parcel # Acres Zoning Units/Acre Units 

N57-003A 

N57-003B 

24.47 +- RU-7 4 98 

 

 

Requested Zoning 

 

Tax Parcel # Acres Zoning Units/AC Units 

N57-003A 

N57-003B 

Residential-20.83 

Commercial-3.64 

MXD 6 125 

 

 
Attachments: Rezoning Application 
  Location Map   
 
Previous Discussions with Council:    None 

 



MCINTOSH PKWY

TORERO TRL

GREISON TRL ALYSSA RD

CLIFFHAVEN CIR

HILLSHIRE DR

MCINTOSH PKWY

90
0 0

0

0

0
0

473

0

0

561

0

71

38

CITY OF NEWNAN  | Project Location

1 inch = 300 feet

CITY OF NEWNAN
PLANNING DEPT. 

25 LAGRANGE STREET
NEWNAN, GEORGIA 30263

www.ci.newnan.ga.us

N LEGEND
CITY LIMITS

Project Location

PARCELS

MCINTOSH PKWY
NEWNAN GA. 30263

ADDRESS

N57 003A N57 003B

§̈¦85SITE
MCINTOSH PKWY





















































City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date:  February 12, 2019 
 
Agenda Item:  Rezoning Request RZ2019-01, Walter Drake for .32 ± 

acres located at 9 Ellis Street/65 Fair Street (Tax Parcel # 
N23 0001 005) 

 
Prepared and Presented by:  Tracy S. Dunnavant, Planning Director 
 

 

Purpose:     To inform the City Council that RZ2019-01 is before the Planning Commission for 
consideration and a recommendation on the requested zoning classification. 
 
Background:     Walter Drake has submitted an application for the rezoning of .32 ± acres 
located at 9 Ellis Street/65 Fair Street.  The request is to rezone the property from CHV (Heavy 
Commercial District) to RU-I (Urban Residential Dwelling District – Historical and Infill) for the 
purpose of eliminating an existing residential non-conforming use status for the house and 
allowing the existing commercial building to be used as a duplex with a special exception. 
 

Current Zoning 
 

Tax Parcel # Acres Zoning Units/Ac Units 

N23 0001 005 .32± CHV N/A 1 
Residence 

and 1 
Commercial 

Structure 

 
Requested Zoning 

 

Tax Parcel # Acres Zoning Units/Ac Units 

N23 0001 005 .32± RU-I Varies 3 
proposed 

 
 

Attachments:  Application for Rezoning 
   Location Map 
    

Previous Discussions with Council:   None 



FAIR ST

TEMPLE AVE

EL
LIS

 ST

BONNELL 
ST

25

0
147

138

25

164

160

33

6

65
572

73

12
152

8

145

157

14875

70

153

69

68

144

156

166

154

155

6166

143

CITY OF NEWNAN  | Project Location

1 inch = 100 feet

CITY OF NEWNAN
PLANNING DEPT. 

25 LAGRANGE STREET
NEWNAN, GEORGIA 30263

www.ci.newnan.ga.us

N

"The information on these maps were derived from digital databases from the
City of Newnan GIS. Care was taken in the creation of these maps.  No

guarantee is given as to the accuracy or currency of any of the data. The City
of Newnan shall not be liable for any special, indirect, or consequential

damages or any damages whatsoever resulting from loss of use, data, or
profits, whether in an action of contract, negligence, or other action, arising
out of or in connection with the use of the information herein provided. The
data layers do not take place of a legal survey or any other primary source

documentation.  However, notification of any errors will be appreciated."

LEGEND
CITY LIMITS

Project Location

PARCELS

65 FAIR ST
NEWNAN GA. 30263

ADDRESS

SITE
UV34

ÄALT
£¤27





















































































BURCH AVE

SAVANNAH ST

PA
GE

 AL
YRO

BIN
SO

N 
ST

55

50 12

47

8

70

30
266

5

7977

24

7 11

0

80

10

34

22

66 27

1812

38

14

52

20

33

34
36

82

16

56

51
22

54

83

53

8

2018

60

13

24

76

26

68

54

58

15 25

28 30

32

7462

21

25

31

29

52

CITY OF NEWNAN  | Project Location

1 inch = 100 feet

CITY OF NEWNAN
PLANNING DEPT. 

25 LAGRANGE STREET
NEWNAN, GEORGIA 30263

www.ci.newnan.ga.us

N

"The information on these maps were derived from digital databases from the
City of Newnan GIS. Care was taken in the creation of these maps.  No

guarantee is given as to the accuracy or currency of any of the data. The City
of Newnan shall not be liable for any special, indirect, or consequential

damages or any damages whatsoever resulting from loss of use, data, or
profits, whether in an action of contract, negligence, or other action, arising
out of or in connection with the use of the information herein provided. The
data layers do not take place of a legal survey or any other primary source

documentation.  However, notification of any errors will be appreciated."

LEGEND
CITY LIMITS

Project Location

PARCELS

70 & 79 SAVANNAH ST
NEWNAN GA. 30263

ADDRESS

SITEÄALT
£¤27

SAVANNAH ST

E Broad St



Catawba Valley HFH

Indianapolis HFH HFH of Greenville County

Atlanta HFH



Habitat Choptank Catawba Valley HFH

Westford HFH Atlanta HFH



Chattanooga HFH Pensacola HFH

SCHFH SCHFH



     City of Newnan, Georgia – Mayor and Council 
      
    Date:      February 12, 2019 

 

Agenda Item:                             10 Burch Ave, 286 West Washington St., 121 Pinson St., and 180 West Washington St. 

 

Prepared and Presented by: Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 

 

Submitted by:    Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 

Purpose: To inform Council of the status of 10 Burch St , 286 West Washington St., 121 Pinson St., and 180 

West Washington St. having been before Council in Public Hearings. 

 

Background: Date of Status Check:  February 5, 2019 

 

 

Options:  1. Accept status reports, no further action is required.   

2.  Other direction from Council. 

 

Funding:  Not Applicable 

 

Recommendation: Staff is requesting Council’s approval for Option 1. 

 

Previous Discussions 

With Council:  All have previous history with Council.     

Property Address 

 

 

Owner 

 
Original Hearing Original # 

Of Days 

Allowed 

Original Resolution 

Deadline 

Extensions Updated 

Resolution 

Deadline 

Status 

 

10 Burch Ave 

 

 

Abdul Saeed Kader 
 

March 28,2017 
 

45 days 
 

May 12,2017 
 

180 days 
 

June 9,2019 
 

Interior progress 

 

286 West Washington St 

 

Irvin Jones Estate 

 

February 24, 2015 

 

180 Days 

 

August 23, 2015 

 

180 Days 

 

April 6, 2019 

 

Exterior progress 

 

 

 

121 Pinson St. 

 

 

Marcus Beasley 

 

 

August 26, 2014 

 

 

 

180 days 

 

 

February 22, 2015 

 

 

180 Days 

 

March 10, 2019 

 

 

Interior progress 

  

 

 

 

180 West Washington St. 

 

 

Render Godfrey 

 

 

September 25, 2017 

 

 

45 days 

 

 

November 9, 2017 

 

 

180 Days 

 

March 10, 2019 

 

 

No Progress 

 

 



Joshua and Kara Cole  Newnan City Council 
10 Buchanan Street  25 LaGrange Street 
Newnan, GA 30263  Newnan, GA 30263 
(770) 653-0550 
  November 20, 2018 

Page 1 of 3 

Dear Councilmembers, 
 
My wife Kara and I own and have lived at 10 Buchanan Street (parcel ID N10 0007 016) since 
2013. We love the city of Newnan, and we’re excited to continue raising our young son here. 
 
Our property has a unique characteristic: Many years past, there was a water tower (parcel 
ID N10 0007 027) behind our property, and an alley extended from Buchanan St. to LaGrange 
St. to allow access for utility workers. I am not sure the year in which the water tower was 
taken down, but it was long enough ago that several large Oak trees have grown in the path of 
the alley towards the rear of our property. 
 
There was also a water line that ran beneath the alley to serve the water tower. In discussing 
the alley with the City Manager, Mr. Phillips, I learned that the water line that runs under the 
alley has been abandoned. 
 
This alley has long served as the sole driveway and vehicular access into our property. It is a 
paved driveway, and it extends up behind our house and to our barn. Because of our desire to 
not park on the street, my wife and I also leverage the driveway for parking our vehicles while 
we are home. When we leave the house together in one vehicle, the other vehicle stays in the 
driveway. 
 
Considering the extent to which we depend on our driveway for property access, I would like to 
respectfully submit the following request: 
 
For the Newnan City Council to authorize the transfer of deed of the portion of the alley 
which serves as our driveway to Joshua M. Cole and Kara W. Cole, current owners of 10 
Buchanan Street, Newnan, GA 30263. 
 
We are excited to continue investing in the improvement of our 1937 home, and official 
ownership of our driveway will create a sense of security and stability for our family. 
 
Please see the following pages for supporting materials, including a copy of the 1911 Plat 
showing the subdivision of the Buchanan Property (including the alley and water tower), as well 
as a current Parcel map from the Coweta County Property Record system (retrieved on 
11/13/18). On both images, I have shaded red the portion of the alley referenced in the above 
request. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or if I can provide any additional information. 
 
Yours Sincerely, 
 
Joshua Cole 
 



Joshua and Kara Cole  Newnan City Council 
10 Buchanan Street  25 LaGrange Street 
Newnan, GA 30263  Newnan, GA 30263 
(770) 653-0550 
  November 20, 2018 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 



Joshua and Kara Cole  Newnan City Council 
10 Buchanan Street  25 LaGrange Street 
Newnan, GA 30263  Newnan, GA 30263 
(770) 653-0550 
  November 20, 2018 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 
 



Motion to Enter into Executive Session 
 
I move that we now enter into closed session as allowed by O.C.G.A. §50-14-4 and 
pursuant to advice by the City Attorney, for the purpose of discussing  
 
 
And that we, in open session, adopt a resolution authorizing and directing the Mayor or 
presiding officer to execute an affidavit in compliance with O.C.G.A. §50-14-4, and that 
this body ratify the actions of the Council taken in closed session and confirm that the 
subject matters of the closed session were within exceptions permitted by the open 
meetings law. 
 
 

Motion to Adopt Resolution after Adjourning Back into Regular Session 
 
I move that we adopt the resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the affidavit stating 
that the subject matter of the closed portion of the council meeting was within the 
exceptions provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-4(b). 
 


	NEWNAN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 2/12/2019
	READING OF THE MINUTES
	A-Minutes-January 22, 2019 Council Meeting

	BOARDS & COMMISSIONS
	B-KNB Resignation - Carole Ann Fields
	C--KNB Resignation - Christina Bowerman

	NEW BUSINESS
	D-PH-Alcohol License-Chipotle Mexican Grill
	E-Investment Policy Presentation / Program
	F-Resolution.CC HazaRd Mitigation Plan Update
	G-Revised 2019 Newnan Centre Budget
	H-Info-Rezone 24.47+ acres/McIntosh Pkwy
	I-Info-Rezone .32+acres located Ellis/Fair
	J-Annex 30.78+ acres 950 N Hwy 29 into City
	K-HAN - 70 & 79 Savannah St-NSP home sites

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	L-Status Report - Various Properties

	VISITORS PETITIONS COMMUNICATIONS & COMPLAINTS
	M-Authorize transfer deed/driveway 10 Buchanan

	MOTION TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
	ADJOURNMENT



